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W e have audited the accompanying financial statements of City of Tallulah, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2003, as listed 
in the table of contents. These fmancial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on th ese fin ancial statements based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in th e United States of Am erica and the 
standards applicable to f'mancial audits contained in issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States of Am erica. Th ose standards require that we plan and perform  th e audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether th e finan cial statem ents are free of ma terial misstatem ent. An audit in cludes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supportin g th e amounts and disclosures in th e fman cial statements. An audit also in cludes assessing th e accounting principles 
used and significan t estim ates ma de by management, as well as evaluating the overall fm an cial statement presentation. W e 
believe th at our audit provides a reasonable basis for our  opinion. 

In our opinion, the general-purpose fm ancial statements referred to above present fairly
, in all ma terial respects, the fmancial 

position of the City as of June 30, 2003, an d the results of its operations an d its cash flows of its proprietary funds for the year 
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In accordance with Govern m ent A we have also issued our  rep ort dated February 27, 2004, on our 
consideration of the City's intern al control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts an d grants. Th at report is an integral part of an audit perform ed in accorda nce with Governm ent 

Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit. 

The information identified in the table of contents as supplemental information is presented for purposes of additional an alysis 

and is not a required part of the general-purpose financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the general-purpose finan cial statements an d, in our  opinion, is fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to th e general-purp ose f'm an cial statements taken as a whole. 

ALLEN , GREEN & W ILLIA M SON . LLP 

M onroe, Louisiana 
February  27, 2004 

Z__ ~ F  

AlSO Located in Jena and Shreveport. Louisiana 
M ember: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana Certified Public Accountants and 

American lnsdtute of Certified Public Accountants Division for CPA Pin s 
Equal Opportunily Employer 



CITY OF TALLULAH 

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUP 
Com bined Balance Sheet 

June 30. 2003 

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 
Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Receivables 

Interfund receivables 

Prepaid expenses 

Restricted Assets: 

Cash 

Investments 

Land, buildings, equipment and improvements 

(net of accumulated depreciation) 
Deferred bond issue costs (net of amortization) 

Amount available in debt service funds 

Amount to be provided for retirement 

of general long-term debt 

TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

Current Liabilities (payable from current assets) 
Accounts payable 
Salaries payables 

Interfund payables 
Deferred revenue 

Total current liabilities (payable 
from current assets) 

Current Liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 
Customer deposits 

Current portion of long-term debt 

Total current liabilities (payable 
from restricted assets) 

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL 

GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS 

573,412 $ 
0 

229,409 

203,683 
0 

0 

0 

194,469 $ 
0 

0 

32,434 
0 

0 

0 

0 0 

87,887 

23,012 

97,634 
0 

208,533 

0 

0 

4,830 
0 

1,506 
O 

6.336 

324,479 $ 
519,510 

0 

15,691 
0 

0 

0 

100 

0 

24,293 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 0 

859.680 24.393 

0 

24,293 
0 

393 
0 

24.686 

0 0 0 

0 O 0 

$ 05 o $ 05 o 



STATEMENTA 

**ACCOUNT GROUPS** 

PROPRIETARY GENERAL GENERA L TOTAL 

FUND - FIXED LONG-TERM (MEMORANDUM 

ENTERPRISE ASSETS OBLIGATIONS ONLY) 

674,370 $ 0 $ 0 $ 

191,333 

133,022 
1.311 

1,373 

811.807 

15,985,489 

262.638 

0 

0 

0 

3,636,266 

0 0 

1,766,830 

519,510 

445,035 

384,830 
1.311 

1,373 

811.807 

19,621,755 

262.638 

859,680 859,680 

2,092,703 2,092,703 

18~061 r343 3r636
~266 2p952T383 26

T767,472 

55,758 
12,274 

285,297 
22,601 

375,930 

49,455 
620,228 

$ 669,683 

0 
0 

0 

172,768 
35,286 

384.830 
0 22,601 

615,485 

0 0 49.455 
O 0 620,228 

$ 0 } 669,683 

(CONTINUED) 



Long-Term Liabilities: 

Bonds payable 
Capital leases payable 
Due to retirement system 
Bank loans payable 
Legal settlement payable 

Total long-term Babilities 

Total liabilities 

Fund Equity: 
Investment in general fixed assets 
Contributed capital 

Retained earnings 

Fund Balances: 
Reserved for debt service 

Unreserved and undesignated 

Total Fund Equity 

CITY OF TALLULAH 

ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUP 
Com bined Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2003 

MENTAL FU 

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL 

GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS 

$ 0 5 
0 
0 
0 

0 5 
0 
0 
0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 5 
0 

0 

0 
o 

0 

0 

2081533 6,336 0 24
,686 

0 

0 

0 

0 

797.971 

797.971 

O 
0 
0 

0 

220,567 

0 0 
O 0 
O O 

859,680 O 

0 (293) 

220,567 859,680 (293) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 1
~006~504 $ 226~903 $ 859,680 $ 24~393 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT 

4 



STATEMENTA 

**ACCOUNT GROUPS** 

PROPREITARY GENERAL GENERAL TOTAL 

FUND - UTILITY FIXED LONG-TERM (MEMORANDUM 
ENTERPRISE ASSETS OBLIGATIONS ONLY) 

0 

0 5 
0 

0 

0 

2,500,582 $ 
45,409 

163,006 
143.386 

10,399,723 

45,409 
163,006 
143.386 

0 100,000 100,000 

7,899,141 0 2
,952,383 10,851,524 

8,944,754 

0 
6,435,337 
2,681,252 

0 2,952,383 12,136,692 

3,636,266 

0 
O 

0 0 

0 0 

9,116,589 3,636,266 

0 3,636,266 
0 6,435,337 
0 2,681,252 

O 859.680 

0 1,018,245 

0 14,630,780 

18~061,343 $ 3T636,266 $ 2,952,383 $ 26T767~472 

(CONCLUDED) 



CITY OF TALLULAH 

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Com bined Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

REVENUES 

Local sources: 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem 
Sales 
Other taxes, penalties, and interest 

Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental revenues 

Federal grants 
State grants 
Local funds 
Fees, charges, and commissions 

for services 
Use of money and property 
Fines and forfeitures 

Miscellaneous revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 
General government: 
Legislative 
Financial and administrative 

Public safety 

Public works 

Health and welfare 

Culture and recreation 

Transportation 

Other 

Debt service: 
Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 

Capita~ outlay 

Total expenditures 

Statem ent 13 

TOTAL 

SPECIAL DEBT CAPITAL (MEMORANDUM 
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE PROJECTS ONLY) 

$ 564,924 $ 
1,013,495 

17,516 

162,197 

29,676 
210,805 

0 

9,300 
29,228 
48,063 
41,611 

126,161 $ 
0 

0 
0 

272,857 
0 
0 

0 
1,434 

0 

132,573 $ 
0 

0 

0 

O 
O 
0 

0 
4,875 

0 

1,974. 
6 

0 5 
0 

0 

0 

485,864 
0 

71,750 

O 
0 

0 

0 

825,676 

1,013,495 

17,516 

162,197 

786,397 
210,805 
71,750 

9,300 
35,537 
46,063 
43~585._  

2,126,815 404,446. 
137,448_  

557,614 3,226,323_ 

47,668 

735,571 

906,320 

485,074 

0 

80,482 

29,181 
0 

88,691 
8,810 

52,785 . 

0 

0 

0 

129,809 

142,842 

0 

O 
0 

O 
O 

0 

2,434,582 . 
272,651 

O 

1,891 

0 

O 

0 

0 

0 
(3 

330,083 

29,859 

O 

0 

15,750 

0 

541,864 

0 

O 

0 

(2) 

0 

0 

0 

47,666 
753,212 

906,320 

1,156,747 

142,842 

60,482 

29,181 

(2) 

418,774 
38,669 

52,785 

361,833 557,612 __  
3,626,678 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (307,767) 131,795 (224,385) 2 (400,355) 

(CONTINUED) 



CITY OF TALLULAH 

ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
Com bined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2003 

SPECIAL DEBT 
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in $ 200,000 $ 0 $ 295,043 
Operating transfers out (295,043) 0 0 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES (USES) (95,043) O 295.043 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
AND OTHER SOURCES OVER 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES (402,810) 131,795 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 1
,200,781 88,772 

70,658 

789.022 

CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

Statem ent B 

TOTAL 

(MEMORANDUM 
ONLY) 

0 $ 495,043 
0 (295,043) 

0 

2 

(295) 

200,000 

(200,355) 

2.078.280 

FUND BALA NCES - ENDING $ 7971971 $ 220T567 ~  $ (293) $ lp877,925 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT 

(CONCLUDED) 



CITY OF TALLULAH 

GENERAL FUND 
Com bined Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 Sta tem ent C 

REVENUES 
Local sources: 

Taxes: 
Ad valorem 

Sales 
Other taxes, penalties, and interest 

Licenses and permits 

Intergovernmental revenues 

Federal grants 
State grants 
Fees, charges, and commissions 

for services 
Use of money and property 

Fines and forfeitures 
Miscellaneous revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 
General government: 

Legislative 
Financial and administrative 

Public safety 

Public works 
Culture and recreation 

Transportation 

Debt serv ice 
Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

BUDGET 

549,700 $ 
1,125,000 

12,500 

133,000 

29,676 
238.700 

VARIANCE 

FAVORABLE 

ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

564,924 $ 
1,013,495 

17,516 
162,197 

29,676 

210.805 

15,224 

(t 11,50~ 
5,016 

29.197 

0 

(27,895) 

28.800 9,300 (19,500) 
30,400 29,228 (1,172) 
89,400 48,063 (32,337) 
35,500 41,611 __  

6,11_ .!_1 

2,263,676 . __  
2,126,815 (136,56!) 

50,000 

1,109,400 

1,010,858 

420,650 

81,750 

0 

47,668 

735,571 

906,320 

485,074 

80,482 

29.181 

2,332 

373,829 

104,538 

(64,424) 
1,268 

(29,181) 

0 88,691 (88,691) 
0 8,810 (8,810) 
0 52,785 .__  {52,785) 

2,672,658 . 
2,434,582 238,076 

$ (408,982) $ (307,767) $ 101,215 

CONTINUED) 



 

CITY OF TALLULAH 

GENERAL FUND 
Com bined Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances- Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 Statem ent C 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Operating transfers in 
Operating transfers out 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING 

SOURCES (USES) 

EXCESS(Deficiency)OF REVENUES 
AND OTHER SOURCES OVER 

EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES 

FUND BALANCES -BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES -ENDING 

BUDGET ACTUAL 

225,000 

0 

225.000 

VARIANCE 

FAVORABLE 

(UNFAVORABLE) 

$ 200,000 $ (25,000) 
(295,043) (295,043) 

(95,043) (320,043) 

(183,982) (402,810) (218,828) 

1,200,000 1,200,781 781 

1,016,018 ~; 797,971 $ (218,047/ 

(CONTINUED) 



CITY OF TALLULAH 

SPECIAL REVENUE 
Com bined Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget (GAAP Basis) and Actual 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 Statem ent C 

REVENUES 
Local sources: 

Taxes: 

Ad valorem 

Intergovem mental revenues 
Federal grants 
Use of money and property 
Miscellaneous revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Public works 

Health and welfare 

Total expenditures 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING 

BUDGET 

VARIANCE 
FAVORABLE 

ACTUAL (UNFAVORABLE) 

120,000 $ 128,181 $ 8.181 

185,000 
0 
0 

272,857 
1.434 

87,857 
1,434 

1,974 1,974 

305,000 404,446 99.446 

140,000 129,809 10,191 

165,000 142,842 22,158 

305~000 272,651 32,349 

0 131 795 131,795 

0 88,772 88.772 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THiS STATEMENT 

CONCLUDED) 



OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Other operating revenue 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Personal services 

Supplies 

M aintenance 

Utilities 

M iscellaneous 

Uniforms 

Insurance 
Accounting fees 
Bad debt expense 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME (Loss) 

CITY OF TALLULAH 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
Com bined Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 

and Changes in Reta ined Earnings 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2003 Statem ent D 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Grant revenue 

Interest income 
Interest expense 
Operating transfers out 
Amortization of bond issue costs 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

NET INCOME (Loss) 

Add depreciation on fixed assets acquired with restricted federal grant 

NCREASE (Decrease) IN RETAINED EARNINGS 

RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

RETAINED EARNINGS - END OF YEAR 

THE NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS STATEMENT 

1,890,537 
225.847 

2,116,384 

689,412 

151,078 

353,454 

182,751 

67,840 

8,827 

68,345 

6,500 
20,735 
595,435 

2.144.377 

(27,993) 

402,233 
13,726 

(456,836) 
(200,000) 
(21,147) 

C 



CITY OF TALLULAH 

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
Com bined Statem ent of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

CASH FLOW S FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided (Used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation 

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 
Decrease (increase) in interfund receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in salaries payable 
Increase (decrease) in interfund payables 
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues 
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits liability 
Total adjustments 

Net cash provided (used) for operating activities 

CASH FLOW S FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Non-operating grant revenue 

Non-operating transfers out 

Net cash provided (used)frem by noncapital and related 
financing activities 

CASH FLOW S FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Acquisition and construction of capital assets 

Principal reduction 
Interest paid on bonds 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related 
financing activities 

CASH FLOW  FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Earnings on investments 

Net increase (decrease) in ca sh and cash equivalents 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING 

NON CASH TRANSACTIONS 
Amortization of bond issue costs 

S~ m entE 

TOTAL 

$ (27,993) 

595,435 

57,683 

(63,962) 
(98,702) 
(1,472) 
49.693 

(2,323) 
1.469 

537,821 

509,828 

402,233 

(200,000) 

202,233 

(404,897) 
(156,631) 
456.836 

(1,018,364) 

13,726 

(292,577) 

1.780.127 

21.147 



 

City of Tallulah 
Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statem ents 
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City of Tallulah 
Notes to the GeneraI-Purpns e Financial Statem ents 

NOTE 1 - SUM M A RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES The accompanying financial statements of the 
City of Tallulah have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted 
standar d-setting body for establishing governm ental accounting an d fm ancial reporting principles. 

A. REPO RTING ENTITY Th e City of Tallulah was foun ded in 1856 an d is incorporated under th e provisions of th e 

"Lawrason  Act" (Louisiana Revised Statutes (R.S.) 33:321-481) of the constitution of the state of Lon isiana. The City is 
located in the parish of M adison and has a population of 9,163. The City is governed by the mayor an d five-member council. 
Th e ma yor an d council m embers serve four-year terms which expire on June 30, 2006. 

As the governing authority of the City, for reporting purposes, the City of Tallulah is considered a separate financial reporting 
entity. The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the p~  government (the City), Co) organizations for which the prtrnary 
government is fmancially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which the nature an d significan ce of their relationship 
with th e prim ary governm ent are such th at exclusion would cause th e reporting entity's fin ancial statem ents to be misleading 
or incomplete. 

Governmental Accounting Standa rds Board (GASB) Statement No. 14 established criteria for determining which comp onent 
units should be cons idered part of the City of Tallulah for financial reporting purp oses. The basic criterion for including a 
potential component unit within the reporting entity is f'mancial accountability. Th e GASB has set forth criteria to be 
considered in determining financial accountability. This criteria includes: 

1. Appointing a voting majority of an organization's goveming body, an d 

a. The ability of th e mun icipality to impose its will on that organization and/or 

b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on 
the City. 

2. Organizations for which the City does not appoint a voting majority but are fiscally dependent on the City 

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be mi sleading if data of the organization  were 
not included because of the nature or significan ce of the relationship. 

Because the City appoints the governing body of the Tallulah Housing Authority, the Housing Authority was determined to 
be a component unit of the City of Tallulah, the financial reporting entity. Th e accomp anying financial statements present 
information only on the funds ma intained by the City and do not present information on the housing authority or the general 
governm ent services provided by th at governm ental un it. 

B. FUND ACCOUNTING The City uses funds and account groups to report on its financial position an d the results of its 
operations. Fund accoun ting is design ed to demonstrate legal compliance an d to aid fin ancial management by segr egating 
transactions relating to certain government  functions or activities. 

A fund is a sep arate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accoun ts that comp rises its assets, liabilities, fund equity, 
revenues, an d expenditures. An account group, on the other hand, is a financial rep orting device designed to provide 
accoun tability for certain assets and liabilities (general fixed assets and general long-term obligations) that are not recorded 
in the "fun ds" because they do not directly affect net expendable available financial resources. Th ey are concern ed only with 
the measurement of financial position, not with the measur ement of results of operations. 

Fun ds are classified into three categories; governmental and proprietary. Each category , in turn , is divided into separate "fund 
types." Governm ental fu nds are used to account for a governm ent's general activities, where th e focus of attention  in on the 
providing of serv ices to the public as opposed to proprietary  funds where th e focus of attention is on th e recovering th e cost 
of providing serv ices to the public or other agencies through serv ice charges or user fees. Fiduciary  funds are used to accoun t 

14 



 

City of Tallulah 
Notes to the General-Purpose Financial Statem ents 

for assets held for others. The City's current operations require the use of governmental and proprietary fund types described 

as follows: 

G overnm ental Funds 

General fund - is the general operating fund of the City. It accoun ts for all financial resources, except those required to 
be accoun ted for in other fun ds. 

Special revenue funds - are used to accoun t for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally restricted to 

expenditures for specified purposes. 

Debt service funds - are used to accoun t for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt 
principal, interest, and related costs. 

Capital proiect funds - are used to accoun t for financial resources received and used for the acquisition, construction, or 
improvement of capital facilities not reported in the other governmental funds. 

Proprietary Fund Type - Enterprise Funds - account for the operations of the City's sewer and water systems. Th e 
operations are fman ced an d operated in a maun er similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the govern ing body 
is that the cost (expenses, including dep reciation) of providing services on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily 
through user char ges. 

C. M EASUREM ENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

Governm ental Funds Th e accoun ting an d finan cial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement 
focus. Govenunental fund types use th e flow of current financial resources measurement focus and th e m odified accru al basis 

of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when 
they are "measurable and available"). "M easurable" mean s the amoun t of the transaction can be determined and "available" 
mean s collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The government 
considers all revenues available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, excep t for unmatured principal and interest on general long-term debt which is recognized when the 
obligations are expected to be liquidated with expenda ble available financial resources. 

W ith this measur ement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on the balance sheet. Operating 
statements of these funds  present increases and decreases in net current assets. Th e governmental funds use the following 
practices in recordin g revenues and expenditures: 

Revenues Ad valorem taxes are recorded in the year the taxes are due an d payable. Ad valorem taxes are assessed on a 
calendar-year basis and attach as an enforceable lien an d become due and payable on the da te the tax rolls are filed with 
the recorder of m ortgages. Louisian a Revised Statute 47:1994 requires that th e tax roll be filed on or before November 15 
of each year. Ad vahirem  taxes become  delinquent if not paid by December 31. The taxes are normally collected in 
December, Jan uary an d February  of the current year. 

Fran chise taxes and intergovermnental revenues are recorded when the City is entitled to the funds 

Interest income on time deposits is recorded when the interest has been earned and the amoun t is determinable. 

Substantially all other revenues are recorded when they are received by the City 

Based on the above criteria, ad valorem taxes, franchise taxes and intergovermnental revenues have been treated as 
suscep tible to accru al. 
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Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when th e related fund liability is 
incurred. 

Other Financing Source (Use) Transfers between funds that are not expected to be repaid are accounted for as other 
fin ancing sources and are recogn ized when th e underlying event occurs. 

The Sewer and W ater Enterprise Funds are maintained on the accru al basis of accoun ting. Revenues are recogn ize when 
th ey are earned, and expenses ar e recognized when th ey ar e in curred. 

Proprietary Funds Proprietary fu nds are accoun ted for on the flow of economic resources measur ement focus and use 
the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the 
tim e th e liabilities are in curred. W ith th is m easurement focus, all assets an d all liabilities associated with th e operation of 
these fu nds are included on the balance sheet. The school board has elected pursuant to GASB Statement No. 20, to apply 
all GASB pronouncements an d only FASB pronouncements issued before November 30, 1989. 

D. BUDGET PRACTICES A prelim inary budget for the ensuing year is prepared by the clerk in M ay. The proposed budget 
is reviewed by the ma yor an d the City Coun cil an d made available to the public. During the Jun e meeting of the City Council, 
the City holds a public hearing on the proposed budget in order to receive comments from citizens. Chan ges are ma de to the 
proposed budget based on the public hearing an d the desires of the City Coun cil as a whole. Th e budget is then adopted during 
the Jun e meeting, and notice a published in the official journal. 

During the year, the City Council receives monthly budget comparison statements which are used as a tool to control the 
operations of the City. Th e City Clerk presents necessary budget amendments to the Board when he determines that actual 
operations are differing materially from those anticipated in the original budget. The Board in regular session reviews the 
proposed amendm ents, ma kes necessary changes, and formally adopts the amendm ents. Th e adoption of am endments is 
included in the City's minutes published in the official journal. Th e budget is established and controlled by the ma yor and 
council members at the functional level of expenditure. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year-end and must be 
reappropriated for th e following year to be expended. All chan ges in the budget must be approved by the mayor and the council 
members. Th e City does not use encumbrance accoun ting in its accoun ting system_ 

E. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Under state law, the City ma y deposit fun ds within a fiscal agent bank organized 
un der the laws of the state of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the union, or the laws of the United States of America. 
Th e City ma y invest in certificates an d time dep osits of state banks organized un der Louisiana laws an d national banks having 
principal offices in Louisiana. 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with a ma turity date of three 
m onth s or less when purchased. 

F. INVESTM ENTS Under state law, th e City ma y invest funds in obligations of th e United States of Am erica, in federally 
in sured in vestm ents, or in tim e deposits with state banks organ ized under Louisiana  law an d national banks having principal 

offices in Louisiana. Investm ents in ma rketable securities (United States Treasury Notes) are reported at their cost on 
Statement A, which is the same as their market value. 

G. FIXED ASSETS Fixed assets used in governmental fund-type operations (general fixed assets) are accoun ted for in the 
general fixed asset accoun t group, rather than  in the general fund. All purchased fixed assets are valued at cost where historical 
records are available an d at estima ted cost where no historical records are available. Approxim ately 50 percent of fixed assets 
are valued at actual cost, while rema ining 50 percent are valued at estimated cost based on the actual cost of like items. No 
depreciation has been provided on general fixed assets. 

Th e cost of norm al ma intenance and repairs th at do not add to the value of fixed assets or ma terially extend th eir usefu l lives 

are not capitalized. Public donaain (infrastructure) general fixed assets consisting of roads, bridges, drainage, parking lots, etc. 
are not capitalized, as these assets are immovable and of value only to the City. 
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H . LONG-GERM  DEBT Long-term obligations, such as bonded debt and bank loans are recognized as liabilities of a 
governmental fund only when due. 

The fixed assets used in the proprietary fun d-type operations are included on the balance sheet of the fun d. Depreciation of 
all exhaustible fixed assets used by the proprietary fund type operations are charged as an  expense against operations. 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over estimated lives of 60 years for th e plan t, distribution system, an d 
collection system,  3 to 10 years for furniture and equipment. 

I. VACATION AND SICK LEAVE Permanent, full-tim e employees receive from  five to ten days of vacation leave each 
year depending on length of service. Emp loyees may accumulate vacation leave. Sick leave is earn ed at the rate often days 
per year; however, no emp loyee may accumulate more th an ten da ys of sick leave. Emp loyees who resign  or retire are 
compensated for annual leave accum ulated to th e date of separation, not to exceed ten da ys, provided in th e case of resign ation 
th e employee has comp leted at least 12 month s of continuous service and has given two weeks' notice of resignation. 

Th e cost of leave privileges, computed in accordance with GASB Codification Section C60, is recogn ized as a current-year 
expenditure in th e governm ental funds when leave is actually take or when emp loyees are paid for accrued leave upon 
resignation or retirem ent. 

J. RESTRICTED ASSETS Certain grants received by th e City contain ed restrictions on spending for specific purposes. 
In th e Sewer Enterp rise Fund, specially-assessed sewer fees are restricted for future repair an d ma intenance of th e sewer 
system . 

K. TOTAL COLUM NS ON THE COM BINED STATEM ENTS Th e total columns on the combined statements are 
captioned M emoran dum Only (overview) to indicate that they are presented only to facilitate finan cial analysis. Data in these 
colunms do not present financial position or results of operations in conformity with accoun ting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. Neither is such da ta comp arable to a consolida tion. Interftmd eliminations have not been ma de 
in the aggregation of th is data . 

L. RI SK M ANAGEM ENT The City exposed to various risk of loss related to tons; theft of, damage to, an d destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and injuries to emp loyees. To han dle such risk of loss, the City maintains commercial insurance 
policies coveting its automobiles, professional liability, general liability, and surety bond coverage. Th ere were no significant 
reductions in in suran ce coverage during th e year ended June 30, 2003. 

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS At June 30, 2003, the City had cash and cash equivalents, net of cash overdrafts (book balances) as 
follows: 

Demand deposits 
Petty cash 
Tim e deposits 

Total 

$ 913,954 
1,824 

852,425 
$1,768,203 

Th ese deposits ar e stated at cost, which approxim ates market. Under state law , these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) 
must be secur ed by federal deposit in sur ance or th e pledge of securities owned by th e fiscal agent bank. The market value of 
the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all tim es equal the amoun t on deposit with the fiscal agent. 

These securities are held in th e name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable 

to both parties. Cash and cash equivalents (bank balances) at June 30, 2003, are secured as follows: 
Bank balan ces $1,837,973 

Federal dep osit in sur ance 

Pledged securities (un collateralized) 
Total 

$ 486,754 
2,752,117 

$3,238,871 
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Because the pledged securities are held by a custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank rather than in the name of the 

City, they are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB Codification C20.106; however, 
Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory  requirement on the custodial bank  to advertise and sell the pledged 
securities within ten days of being notified by the City that the fiscal agent bank has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand. 

NO TE 3 - LEV IED TAXES The following is a summary of authorized and levied ad valorem  taxes: 

City operations 
Police and fire departments 
1991 street program 
1988 general obligation bond 
1981 general obligation bond 

Auth orized 
M illage 

17.93 
7.53 
9.48 

Various 
Various 

Levied 
M illage 
17.39 
7.53 
9.48 
8.10 

.50 

The difference between authorized an d levied millages is the result ofreassessments of taxable property required by Article 7 

Section 18(1) of the Louisiana Constitution of 1974. 

Th e following are the principal taxpayers for the parish and city an d their combined 2003 assessed valuation: 

Hibernia N ational Bank  
FBA , LLC 
Bell South Telecommunications 
Cross Keys Bank 
Coun try Ford, Inc. 
M adison Correctional Center 
Staple Cotton Cooperative 
Lubrizul 
Atm os Energy 
National Auto/Tra ck Stops, Inc. 

NO TE 4 - RECEIVABLES Th e following is a summ ary  of receivables at June 30
, 2003 

Taxes: 
Sales an d use 
Oth er taxes, penalties, and interest 

Grants: 
Federal 
State 

Sewer user fees 
W ater user fees 
Other 

Total 

18 

Capital 
General Proiects 

$ 95,238 
65,347 

24,293 
43,861 

0 
0 

670 
$229,409 

0 

Assessed 
Valuation 
$1,246,310 
1,155,524 
490,330 
440,810 
309,870 
266,249 
245,546 
223,040 
200,496 
174,000 

$4,752,175 

Enterprise 

$ 0 
0 

Percent 
of Total 

8.20 
7.76 
3.20 
2.90 
2.00 
1.70 
1.60 
1.50 
1.30 
1.10 
31.26 

Total 

$ 95,238 
65,347 

24,293 
43,861 
52,757 
130,530 
33,009 

$445~035 
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NOTE 5 - DUE FROM /TO OTHER FUNDS Individual balances due from/to other funds at June 30, 2003, are as follows: 

Due from/to other funds 

General fund 
Special revenue funds : 

Section 8 
Street construction 

Debt Service Funds : 
1998 Obligation 
1981 Obligation 

Capital Projects Funds 
LCBG 
Fire protection 

Sewer enterprise fund 
W ater enterp rise fund 

Total 

Due From  
Oth er Fun ds 
$203,683 

Due to 
Oth er Funds 
$ 97,634 

16,483 
15,951 1,506 

13,951 
1.740 

33,513 

99,509 
$384,830 

293 
100 

262,967 
22,330 

$384,830 

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL ASSETS The following presents the chan ges in general fixed assets for the year en ded June 30, 2003 

Governmental activities 
Cost 

Land 
Buildings an d improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Assets under capital lease 

Capital assets, net 

Beginning 
Balance 

$ 78,500 
2,344,940 
1,020,650 
139,391 

$ 0 
0 

52,785 
0 

Ending 
Balance 

$0 $ 78,500 
0 2,344,940 
0 1,073,435 
0 139,391 

A summ ary of plan t and equipment used in th e Sewer System Enterp rise Fund follows: 

Land 
Equipment 
Plant 
Tran smission lines 
W ater systems 
Pum ping stations 

Total depreciable assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Net dep reciable assets 
Add construction in progress 

Total plant and equipm ent 

Sewer Fund 
$ 612,879 

312,457 
7,866,378 
326,941 

0 
0 

9,118,655 
2,034,894 
7,083,761 

0 

$7,083,761 

W ater Fun d 
$ 65,451 
565,775 

2,034,116 
2,203,053 
2,980,369 
337,944 

8,186,708 
1,675,158 
6,511,550 
2,390,178 

$8,901,728 

Total 
$ 678,330 

878,232 
9,900,494 
2,529,994 
2,980,369 
337,944 

17,305,363 
3,710,052 
13,595,311 
2,390,178 

$15,985,489 

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLANS Substantially all employees of the City of Tallulah are members of either the Firefighters' 
Retirement System of Louisiana, the M unicipal Police Retirement System of Louisiana, or the Social Security System. The 
state retirement systems are each multiple-employer, public employee retirement systems (PERS), controlled and administered 
by separate boards of trustees. 
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H REFIGHTERS' RETIREM ENT SYSTEM  OF LOUISIANA M embership in the Louisiana Firefighters' Retirement 
System is mandatory for all full-time firefighters employed by a municipality, parish, or fire protection district that did not enact 
an ordinance before January 1, 1980, exempting itself from  participation in th e System . Emp loyees are eligible to retire at or 
after age 55 with at least 12 years of creditable service or at or after age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service. Upon 
retirement, members are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for lie, equal to 31/a percent of their final-average 
salary  for each year of creditable serv ice, not to exceed 100 percent of their final-average salary . Final-average salary  is the 
emp loyee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average. Emp loyees who terminate 
with at least 12 years of service and do not withdraw their emp loyee contributions may retire at or after age 55 (or at or after 
age 50 with at least 20 years of creditable service at termination) and receive the benefit accrued to their da te of termination. 
The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or am ended by state statute. 

The System issues an  annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements an d required supplementary  
in formation for the System . That report may be obtained by writing to th e Firefighters' Retirem ent System, Post Office Box 

94095, Baton Rouge, Louisian a 70804, or by calling (225) 925-4060. 

Plan  members are required by state statute to contribute 8.0 percent of their annual covered salary and the City of Tallulah is 
required to contribute an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 9.0 percent of annual covered payroll. Th e 
contribution requirements of plan members and the City of Tallulah are established and ma y be amended by state statute. As 

provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the emp loyer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject 
to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. Th e City of Tallulah's conlributions to the 
System for the years ending June 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, were $13,427, $10,742, and $9,347, respectively, equal to the 
required contributions  for each year. 

M UNICIPAL POLICE EM PLOYEES' RE TIREM ENT SYSTEM  All full-time police dep artment emp loyees engage in 
law enforcement are required to participate in th e System . Emp loyees who retire at or after age 50 with at least 20 years of 
creditable serv ice or at or after age 55 with at least 12 years of creditable serv ice ar e entitled to a retirem ent benefit, payable 
monthly for life, equal to 31/a percent of the f'mal-average salary for each year of creditable service. Final-average salary is the 
employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average. Emp loyees who terminate 
with at least th e am oun t of creditable service stated above, and do not with dr aw their employee contributions, ma y retire at th e 
ages specified previously and receive the benefit accru ed to their date of term ination. Th e System also provides death and 
disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute. 

Th e System issues an annual publicly available finan cial report that includes financial statements an d required supplementary  
in formation for th e System. That rep ort may be obtained in writing to th e M un icipal Police Emp loyees' Retirem ent System of 

Louisiana, 8401 United Plaza Boulevard, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809-2250, or by calling (225) 929-7411. 

Plan m embers are required by state statu te to contribute 7.5 percent of th eir annual covered salary and th e City of Tallulah is 
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 9.0 percent of annual covered payr oll. The 
contribution requirements of plan me mbers and the City of Tallulah are established and may be am ended by state statute. As 
provided by Louisiana Revised Statute 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject 
to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The City of TaUulah's contributions to the 
System for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002, an d 2001, were $21,945, $23,079, an d $23,394, respectively, equal to the 
required contributions for each year. 

NOTE  8 - BANK LOANS PAYABLE During the year ended June 30, 1997, the City secured a bank loan to finance the 
construction of a factory building. Theam ountoftheloanwas$376,813 with a 7.0 perceut interest. Th e rema ining principal 
in the amount of $143,386 is due in annual installments of $51,894 through 2007. Loan payments are made from the general 
fu nd. 
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NOTE 9 - CHAN GES IN LONG-TERM  OBLIGATIONS The following is a summary of long-term obligation trans- 
actions for the year ended June 30, 2003: 

Long-term  debt at July 1, 2002 
Additions 
Retirem ents 
Long-term  debt at June 30, 2003 

Bonded 
Debt 

$2,773,882 
0 

273,300 

$2,500,582 

Capital 
Leases Oth er 
$89,237 $353,531 

0 0 
43,828 47,139 

$45,409 $3061392 

Legal 
Se~lements 
$150,000 
100,000 
150,000 
$I00,000 

The classification "other" consists of $163,006 which represents the balance remaining as a result of the City of Tallulah's 
Police Retirem ent Fund m erging with th e M un icipal and State Police Retirem ent System  of Louisiana

, and $143,386, 
representing a bank loan. 

Bonded debt payable at June 30, 2003, are comprised of the following individual issues: 

$640,000 - 1998 Refunding Bonds. The remaining principal is due in annual installments 
of $15,000 to $80,000 through M arch 1, 2008, with interest of 4.95 percent. Debt 
retirement payments are ma de from the 1998 General Obligation Bond Debt Service Fund

. 

$327,740 - Certificates of Indebtedness. Th e principal will be due in annual installm ents 
of $42,187 June 30, 2011. Interest is 4.50 percent. 

Total general obligation bonds 

Revenue bond- $2,390,000-1998 Public Improvement Refunding Bonds
. Th e rema ining 

principal is due in annual installments of $175,000 to $260,000 through July I, 2009. 
Interest rates are 3.90 percent to 5.00 percent. Debt retirement payments ar e ma de from th e 
1998 Public Im provement Bond Debt Service Fun d

. 

Total bonded debt payable from Governmental fund-type fun ds 

W ater Revenue bonds  

$ 185,960 

350,000 

269,622 

805,582 

1,695,000 

$2,500,582 

$6,500,000 - Principal is due in annual installm ents of $140
,000 to $465,000 through 

September 1, 2024. Interest rates are 4.00 percent to 5.50 percent. Debt retirement 
paym ents are ma de from  th e W ater Enterprise Fun d. $6,065,000 

$1,733,000- Principal is due in monthly installm ents starting February 26
, 2003, of $8,356 

through January  26, 2041. In terest rate is 4.875 percent. Debt retirement paym ents ar e 
ma de from  th e W ater Enterprise Fun d. 1,726,369 

$728,000 - Principal is due in monthly installm ents starting August 20
, 2002, through 

August 20, 2042. Interest rate is 4.50 percent. Debt retirement paym ents ar e made from  th e 
W ater Enterp rise Fund. 

Total revenue bonds  payable from  W ater Enterprise Fun d 

728~000 

$8~519,369 
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As shown on Statement A, $859,680 is available in debt service funds to service the bonded debt in the general long-term debt 
account group. The annual requirements to amortize all outstanding debt at June 30, 2003 are as follows: 

Year 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009-2013 
2014-2018 
2019-2023 
2024-2028 
2029-2033 
2034-2038 
2039-2043 

Total 

General Long-Term  Debt 
Principal Interest Tota...._ .Jl 

$ 470,395 $140,773 $ 611,168 
461,729 119,159 580,888 
421,33l 98,298 519,629 
364,523 77,507 442,030 
366,745 56,846 423,591 
747,533 89,525 837,058 
65,598 22,231 87,829 
54,529 6,971 61,500 

0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 
0 0 0 

$2,952,383 $611~310 $3,563,693 

Enterprise Funds 
PrincipM Interest Total 

$ 171,474 $ 448,754 $ 620,228 
189,868 441,359 631,227 
196,071 433,061 629,132 
212,332 419,050 631,382 
223,655 403,853 627,508 

1,360,466 1,782,307 3,142,773 
1,759,592 1,394,039 3,153,631 
2,250,514 894,336 3,144,850 
801,394 391,726 1,193,120 
426,242 276,768 703,010 
540,146 162,864 703,010 
387,615 32,681 420,296 

$8,519,369 $7,080,798 $15,600,167 

General obligation bonds totaling $805,582 at June 30, 2003, are secured by an annual ad valorem tax levy. In accordance with 
Louisian a Revised Statute 39: 562, the City is legally restricted from incurring long-term bonded debt in excess of 35 percent 
of the assessed value of taxable property in the City. The City is within that statutory limitation. 

NOTE 10 - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL Th e City has received gran ts from various federal, state, and local agencies to 
fmance the acquisition and construction of the enterprise fund fLxed assets. Th e amount, shown as contributed capital on the 
balance sheet, is reduced each year by the amount of depreciation expense recognized on f~xed assets constructed or acquired 
with the grant funds. At June 30, 2003, accumulated reduction of contributed capital related to those assets is $1,757,983. 

NOTE 11 - LITIGATION AND CLAIM S At June 30, 2003, the City is involved in several lawsuits. Th e City reached a 
settlement of one lawsuit subsequent to year end. A long-term liability has been accrued in the General Long-term Obligations 
Fund in the amount of $I00,000. In the opinion of the City's legal counsel, the outcome of any remaining lawsuits will not 
materially affect the fin ancial statements. 

NOTE 12 - SEGM ENT INFORMATION The City ma intains two enterprise funds which provide water an d sewer services 
Segment information for the year ended Jtme 30, 2003, was as follows: 

Operating revenues 
Depreciation and amortization expense 
Operating income (loss) 
Operating transfers out 

Net income (loss) 
Property, plant, and equipment - 

Additions 
Net working capital 
Total assets 
Total equity 

Total 
Enterprise 

W ater Fund Sewer Fun d Funds 
$1,610,492 $505,892 $2,116,384 

467,083 149,499 616,582 

249,191 (277,184) (27,993) 
200,000 0 200,000 

(15,010) (275,007) (290,017) 

402,233 
433,771 

10,510,832 
1.891.948 

0 
190,335 

7,550,511 
7,224,641 

402,233 
624,106 

18,061,343 
9,116,589 



SU PPL EM EN TA L IN FO R M A TIO N  
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SECTION 8 - The Section Fund accounts for the operations of th e lower income housing assistance program  which provides 
aid to very low-in come fam ilies in obtaining decent, safe, and sanitary rental housing. Financing is provided by a federal grant. 

STREET PRO GRAM - The Slreet Program  Fund accounts for th e m aintenance of th e City sl~eets. Major means of financing 
is provided by a specific City-wide ad valorem  tax. 

BUILDING REPAIR - Th e Building Repair Fund accounts for repairs and maintenance of the City hall funded by a gran t 
from the state of Louisiana. 

TEC BUILDING - Th e TEC Building Fun d accounts for revenue received from the rental of a City-owned building. 
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ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Interfund receivables 

TOTALASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts, salaries and 

other payables 
Inter'fund payables 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

CITY OF TALLULAH 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Com bining Balance Sheet 

June 30. 2003 Exhibit 1 

STREET BUILDING TEC 

SECTION 8 PROGRAM REPAIR BUILDING TOTAL 

116,090 $ 68,241 
16,483 15,951 

132~573 84~192 

0 4,830 
0 1,506 

0 6.336 

FUND BALA NCES: 

Unreserved and undesignated 132
,573 77,856 

10 $ 10,128 $ 194,469 
0 0 32,434 

226.903 

4,830 

1.506 

6.336 

10 10,128 220,567 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

FUND BALA NCES 132
~573 $ 84~192 $ 10 $ 10,128 $ 226~903 



REVENUES 
Local sources: 

Taxes 

Ad valorem 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Use of money and property 
Miscellaneous revenues 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

Public works 
Health and welfare 

Total expenditures 

CITY OF TALLULAH 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
Com bining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2003 Exhibit 2 

STREET BUILDING TEC 
SECTION 8 PROGRAM REPAIR BUILDING TOTAL 

0 5 
272,857 

584 

128,181 $ 
0 

704 
1,974 0 

0 5 
0 

0 

0 

0 5 
0 

146 

0 

128,181 
272,857 
1,434 
1.974 

275,415 128,885 0 146 404,446 

O 129,809 
142,842 0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

129,809 
142.842 

142,842 129,809 0 O 272,651 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 132,573 (924) 0 146 131,795 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 0 78
,780 10 9,982 88,772 

FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 132,573 $ 77,856 $ 10 $ 10,128 $ 220,567 

26 



 

City of Tallulah 
Debt Service Funds 

1998 G ENERAL OBLIGATION BOND FUND - The 1998 General ObligationBond Fund accumulates m onies for paym ent 
of $640,000 General Obligation Bonds dated January 22, 1998, issued for the purpose of providing for defeasement of the 1988 
General Obligation Bonds. Fun ding is provided by an ad valorem  tax. 

1988 CER TIFICATES O F INDEBTED NESS FUND - The 1988 Certificates of Indebtedness Fun d accumulates monies 
for payment of the $700,000 Certificates of Indebtedn ess dated February 1, 1988, issued for the purpose of refunding and 
extending certain obligations incurred by the City. Fun ding is provided from the excess of aun ual revenues accruing to the 
budget of the City for a ten-year period. Th ese certificates were retired during the year ended June 30, 2000. 

1981 GENERAL OBLIGATION BOND FUND - The 1981 General Obligation Bond fun d accumulates monies for payment 
of $260,000 General Obligation Bonds da ted October 8, 1981, issued for the purpose of constructing improvements and 
extensions to the sewer system of the City. Funding is provided by an ad valorem tax. 

1998 PUBLIC IM PRO VEM EN T BOND FUND - Th e 1998 Public Improvem ent Bond Fund accum ulates m oni es for 
payment of th e $2,390,000 Revenue Refunding Bonds dated M arch 12, 1998, issued for the purpose of providing for 
defeasem ent of th e 1989 Public Improvement Bonds. Funding is provided by a tw o percent sales tax. 



ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Receivables 
Interfund receivables 

TOTALASSETS 

CITY OF TALLULAH 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
Com bining Balance Sheet 

June 30. 2003 Exhibit 3 

1998 1988 1981 1998 
GENERAL CERTIFICATES GENERA L PUBLIC 

OBLIGATION OF OBLIGATION IMPROVEMENT 

BOND INDEBTEDNESS BOND BOND TOTAL 

O $ 952 $ 44,315 $ 279,212 $ 324,479 
519,510 0 0 0 519

,510 
0 0 0 0 0 
O 0 1,740 13,951 15,691 

FUND BALANCES: 

Unreserved and undesignated 519
,510 952 46,055 

293,163 859.680 

293~163 859,680 

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 519
r510 $ 952 $ 461055 $ 293,163 $ 859,680 
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REVENUES 
Local sources: 

Taxes 

Ad valorem 
Use of money and property 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

Finance and administrative 

Debt service: 

Principal retirement 
Interest and bank charges 

Total expenditures 

CITY OF TALLULAH 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS 
Com bining Statem ent of Revenues, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 Exhibit 4 

1998 1988 1981 1998 

GENERAL CERTIFICATES GENERAL PUBLIC 

OBLIGATION OF OBLIGATION IMPROVEMENT 

BOND INDEBTEDNESS BOND BOND TOTAL 

0 5 
3,850 

3,850 

1,891 

264,270 

0 

266,161 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES (262,311) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers in 295

,043 

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 295
~043 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

32,732 

486,778 

0 5 
11 

14,702 $ 117,871 $ 132,573 
138 

11 14,840 

876 4,875 

118,747 137,448 

0 O 0 1.891 

0 5,813 60,000 330.083 
0 9,602 20,257 29,859 

0 15.415 

11 

0 

80,257 361,833 

(575) 38,490 (224,385) 

0 0 295,043 

0 0 0 295
,043 

11 (575) 38,490 70,658 

941 46,630 254
,673 789,022 

FUND BALA NCES- ENDING $ 519
T510 $ 952 ~ 461055 $ 2931163 $ 859,680 
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City of Tanulah 

Capital Projects Funds 

LCDBG CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - The Louisiana Community Development Block Grant Fund accounts for major 
invrovements to the streets of the City. Financing is provided by a grant from the United States Departm ent of Housing an d 
Urban Development through the Louisiana Division of Administration. 

FIRE PROTECTION CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND - Th e Fire Protection Capital Projects Fun d accoun ts for the 
acquisition of equipment and the construction of a new fire station. Interim  financing is provided by loan s from the Federal 
Housing Adm inistration. 



ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Receivables 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES: 

Accounts, salaries and 

other payables 
Interfund payables 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND BALA NCES: 

Unreserved and undesignated 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND 

FUND BALA NCES 

CITY OF TALLULAH 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
Com bining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2003 Exhibit 5 

FIRE 

LCDBG PROTECTION TOTAL 

100 $ 0 $ 100 
24,293 

24.393 

24,293 
293 

0 

O 
100 

24,293 

24.393 

24,293 
393 

24,586 109 24.686 

(193) (100) (293) 



REVENUES 
Local sources: 
Intergovernmental - local funds 
Miscellaneous revenues 

Federal grants 

Total revenues 

EXPENDITURES 

Current: 

General and administrative 
Public works 
Other 

Total expenditures 

CITY OF TALLULAH 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 
Com bining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures 

and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2003 

EXCESS (Deficiency) OF REVENUES 
OVER EXPENDITURES 

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 

FUND BALA NCES - ENDING 
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Exhibit 6 

FIRE 

LCDBG PROTECTION TOTAL 

71,750 $ 
0 

485,864 

0 5 
0 
0 

71,750 
0 

485.864 

557,614 557,614 

15,750 
541,864 

(2) 

0 

0 

0 

15,750 

541,864 

(2) 

557,612 0 557.612 

O 

(195) (100) (295) 



 

City of Tallulah 
Proprietary Fund Type - Enterprise Funds 

W ATER FUND - The water Enterprise Fund accounts for the operations of th e City's water departm ent
. Financing is provided 

prim arily by fees from  water sales. Major expenses of the fund are personal services and depreciation. 

SEW ER FUND - The Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for the operations of the City's sewer system . Financing is provided 
primarily by user fees. Major expenses of the fund are personal services and dep reciation. 
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ASSETS 

Current Assets: 

Cash 

Receivables 

Interfund receivables 

Prepaid expenses 
Total Current Assets 

Restricted Assets: 

Cash 
Investments 

Total Restricted Assets 

CITY OF TALLULAH 

ENTERPRISE FUND 
Com bining Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2803 

Long-term Assets 
Property, plant and equipment (net of 
accumulated depreciation) 
Deferred bond issuance costs (net of amortization) 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES: 

Current Liabilities (payable from current assets): 
Accounts payable 
Salaries payable 

Interfund payables 
Deferred revenue 

Total Current Liabilities (payable from current assets) 

Exhibit 7 

W ATER SEW ER 
FUND FUND TOTAL 

295,201 $ 
138,576 

99.509 

379,169 $ 
52,757 

33.513 

674,370 

191,333 

133.022 
0 1,311 1,311 

533,286 466,750 __  
1,000,036 

1.373 0 1,373 
811,807 0 611,807 

813,180 0 813 180 

8,901,728 7,083,761 15,985,489 

262,638 0 262,638 

45,154 
9,430 

22.339 

T.550.511 

10,604 

2,844 

262,967 

55,758 
12,274 

285.297 

22,60! 0 22,601 
99,515 276,415 375,930 

Cu~renf Liabilities (payable from restricted assets): 
Customer deposits 0 
Current portion of long-term debt 620,228 

Total Current Liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 620,228 

Long-term debt - revenue bonds payable 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 

FUND EQUITY  

Contributed capital, (net of amortization) 
Restricted earnings 

Total Fund Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY  

49,455 49,455 
0 620,228 

49,455 669,683 

7,899,141 __  
0 7,899,141 

8,618,884 325,870 8,944,754 

0 6,435,337 6,435,337 

1,891,948 789,304 2,68f,252. 

1,891,948 7,224,641 9,116,589 

~ $ 7~5501511, ~ 18~0611343 ~4 



OPERATING REVENUES 
Charges for services 
Other operating revenue 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Personal serv ices 

Supplies 

Maintenance 

Utilities 

Miscellaneous 

Uniform s 

Insurance 

Accounting fees 
Bad debt expense 
Depreciation 
Capital outlay 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING INCOME (Loss) 

CITY OF TALLULAH 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
Com bining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, 

and Changes in Retained Earnings 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2003 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Grant revenue 
Interest income 
Interest expense 

Operating tranfers out 
Amortization of bond issue costs 

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

NET INCOME (Loss) 

Add depreciation on fixed assets acquired with 

contributed capital 

NCREASE IN RETAINED EARNINGS 

W ATER 
FUND 

$ 1,544,678 
65,814 

1.610.492 

Exhibit 8 

SEW ER 

FUND TOTAL 

345,859 $ 
160 033 

1,890,537 
225.847 

505,892 2,116,384 

451,030 238,382 689,412 

148,735 2,343 151,078 

135,159 218,295 353,454 

92,984 89,767 182,751 
22,957 44,883 67,840 

6,381 2,446 8,827 
44,458 23,887 68,345 
6,500 0 6,500 
12,406 8,329 20,735 
445,936 149,499 595,435 

(5,245) 5,245 0 

1,361,301 783,076 2,144,377 

249,191 (277,184) (27,993) 

402,233 

11,549 

(456,836) 
(200,000) 
(21,147) 

0 
2,177 

0 

0 

0 

(264,201) 2,177 

402,233 

13,726 

(456,836) 
(2OO,OOO) 
(21,147) 

(262,024) 

(15,010) (276,007) (290,017) 

0 136,555 136,555 

(15,010) (138,452) (153,462) 

RETAINED EARNINGS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 1
,906,958 927,756 2,834,714 

RETAINED EARNINGS - END OF YEAR $ 1,891~948 ~; 789,304 $ 2,681r252 



CITY OF TALLULAH 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
Com bining Schedule of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended June 30. 2003 

CASH FLOW S FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Operating Income (Loss) 
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash 
Provided (Used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation 

Decrease (increase) in acco unts receivable 
Decrease (increase) in interfund receivable 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in salaries payable 
Increase (decrease) in interfund payables 
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues 
increase (decrease) in customer deposits liability 
Total adjustments 

Net cash provided (used) for operating activities 

W ATER 

FUND 

$ 249,191 $ 

SEW ER 
FUND 

Exhibit 9 

(277,184) $ (27,993) 

445,936 149,499 595,435 

69,598 (11.915) 57,6B3 
(45,300) (18,662) (63,962) 
(71,707) (26,995) (98,702) 
(1,472) (1.472) 
22,212 27,481 49,693 

(2,760) 437 (2,323) 
(3,707) 5,176 1,469 

412,800 __  125 021 537,821 

661.991 

CASH FLOW S FROM NONCAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Non-operating grant revenue 402

,233 

Non-operating transfers out (200,000) 
Net cash provided (used)from by noncapital and related 
financing activities 202

,233 

CASH FLOW S FROM CAPITAL AND RELATEO FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Principal reduction 

Interest paid on bonds 

Net cash provided (used) by capitat and related 
financing activities 

CASH FLOW  FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Earnings on investments 

Net increase (decrease) in ca sh and cash equivalents 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - ENDING 

NON CASH TRANSACTIONS 
Amortization of bond issue costs 

(152,163) 509,828 

9 

0 

402,233 

(200,000) 

202,233 

H04.897) 0 ~04.897) 
(156,631) g (156,631) 
(456,836) 0 456,836 

(1,018,364) O (1,018,364) 

11,549 

(142.591) 

2.177 

(149,986) 

13,726 

(292,577) 

1,259,972 529,155 1,780,127 

$ 1T108p381 $ 379~169 $ 1r487r550 

21,147 $ 0 $ 21,147 



Janet Clark 

Eddie EUedge 

Charles Finlayson 

Alberta Glispy 

Doris Greene 

Gloria Hayden 

Billy Jam es 

Tommy W atson 

TOTAL 

City of Tallulah 

Schedule of Com pensation Paid Council M em bers 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Exhibit 10 



City of Tanulah 

OTHER REPORTS REQUIRED BY ITIN 
BY OFFICE OF M ANAGEM ENT AND BUDGET 

AND 

The first report following this page is a report on compliance and on intern al control over fin au cial reporting based on an  audit 
of f'mancial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, issued by th e Comp troller General of 
the United States of America. Th e section of the report on compliance is based solely on th e audit of the genem l-pulpose 
financial statements and presents, where applicable, compliance matters that would be ma terial to the general-purpose financial 
statements. Th e section of the report on intern al control over fin ancial reporting is, likewise, based solely on th e audit of the 
general-purpose financial statem ents an d includes, where appropriate, an y reportable conditions and/or material weaknesses. 
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A LLEN, G REEN & W ILLIAM SON, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

P. O. Box 6075 
M onroe, LA 71211-6075 

2414 Ferrand Street 
Monroe, LA 71201 

Toll-free: (888)7414)205 
www.allengreencpa.com 

Phone: (318)388-4422 
Fax: (318) 388~.664 

Report on Com pliance and on Internal Control Over Financial 
Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statem ents 

Perform ed in Accordance W ith Governm ent A uditino Standard 

M ayor and Council M embers 
City of Tallulah 
Tallulah, Louisiana 

Tim Green, CPA 

M argie W illiamson, CPA 

Ernest L. Alien, CPA 
(Retired) 

1963 - 2000 

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of City of Tallulah, (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2003, and have issued our report thereon dated Febru ary 27, 2004. W e conducted our audit in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to f'mancial audits contained in 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States of America. 

Complian ce 
As part of obtaining reasonable assuran ce about whether the City's general-purp ose fman cial statementS are free of material 
misstatem ent, we perform ed tests of its complian ce with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contractS, and grants, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct an d material effect on th e determ ination of fin an cial statem ent amounts. 

However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit an d, accordingly, we 
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed in stances of noncomp liance th at are required to be reported 

under Government Auditing Standards and as identified in the accompanying Schedule of Findings an d Questioned Costs item 
03-F2, 03-F5 and 03-F6. 

nternal Control Over Financial Renortine 
In planning an d performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over fman cial reporting in order to determine 
our auditing procedur es for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the f'mancial statements and not to provide assur ance on 
intern al control over f'man cial reportin g. However, we noted several matters involvin g internal control over financial reporting 
and its operation that we consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our  attention 
relating to significan t deficiencies in the design  or operation of internal control over f'man cial reporting that, in our judgement, 
could adversely affect the City's ability to record, process, summarize an d rep ort f'mancial da ta consistent with the assertions 
of managem ent in th e general-purpose fin ancial statements. The reportable conditions are described in th e accomp an ying 

Schedule of Finding and Questioned Costs as items 03-F1, 03-F3 and 03-F4, an d 03-F7. 

A ma terial weakness is a condition in which the design  or operation of one or more of internal control comp onentS does not 
reduce to a relatively low level th e risk that mi sstatements in amounts th at would be material in relation to th e general-purpose 
finan cial statements being audited ma y occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of 
performing their assign ed functions. Our consideration of intem al control over fmancial reporting would not necessarily 
disclose all ma tters in the internal control that mi ght be reportable conditions an d, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose 
all reportable conditions that are also considered to be reportable conditions. However, we believe the rep ortable conditions 
noted above are not a ma terial weakn ess. 
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Aldermen, management, federal awarding agencies, and pass- 
through entities and is not intended to be an d should not be used by an yone other than these specified parties. 

ALLEN, GREEN & W ILLIAM SON , LLP 

M onroe, Louisian a 
February 27, 2004 



 

The CPA, 
Never Unde~stirnate The Value~ 

A LLEN, G REEN & W ILLIAM SON, LLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

P. O. Box 6075 
M onroe, LA 71211-6075 

2414 Ferrand Street 
Monroe, LA 71201 

M ayor and Council M embers 
City of Tallulah 
TaUulah, Louisiana 

Toll-free: (888) 741~205 
www.allengreencpa.com 

Phone: (318) 3884422 
Fax: (318) 388-4664 

Report on Com pliance W ith Requirem ents Applicable to 

Each M ajor Program and on Internal Control Over 
Com pliance in Accordance W ith 

Tim Green, CPA 

M argie W illiamson, CPA 

Ernest L. Allen, CPA 
(Retired) 

1963 - 2000 

Complian ce 
W e have audited the complian ce of the City of Tallulah with the types of compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office 
of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular No. A- 133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its maj or federal 
programs for the year ended Jun e 30, 2003. The City's major federal progranas are identified in the summary of auditors' results 
section of the accorapanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, 
contracts an d grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City's ma nagement. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

W e conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
Am erica; the standards applicable to fm ancial audits contained in Governm ent Auditing Standards, issued by th e Comp troller 
General of the United States of Am erica; and OM B Circular N o. A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, an d Non-Profit 
Organ izations. Those stan dards and OM B Circular No. A-133 require th at we plan  an d perform  the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of comphan ce requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
an d ma terial effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedur es as we considered necessary  in the circumstances. 
W e believe that our  audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our  audit does not provide a legal determination on the 
City's comp liance with  th ose requirements. 

In our opinion, the City comp lied, in all ma terial respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each 
of its ma jor federal programs  for the year ended Jun e 30, 2003. 

Th e management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over comp lian ce with 
requirements of laws, regu lations, contracts and gran ts applicable to federal progr ams . In  planning and performing our audit, 
we considered the City's intern al control over comp lian ce with requirements that could have a direct an d ma terial effect on a 
major federal program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on comp liance 
and to test and report on internal control over comp liance in accordance with OM B Circular No. A-133. 

Our  consideration of the intern al control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all ma tters in the intern al 
control over financial reporting that might be ma terial weaknesses. A ma terial weakness is a condition in which the design or 
operation of one or more of the intern al control comp onents does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that 
noncomp lian ce with applicable requirements of laws, regu lations , contracts and gr an ts that would be material in relation to a 
ma jor federal program being audited ma y occur and not be detected within a timely period by emp loyees in the normal course 
of performing their assigned functions . W e noted no ma tters involving the intern al control over comp liance an d its operation 
th at we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A~so Located in Jena and Shreveport, Louisiana 
Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana Certified Public Acco~ tants and 

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Division for CPA Fi~ s 
Equal Oppo rtunity Employer 



This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board
, management, federal awarding agencies, and 

pass-through entities and is not intended to be an d should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

ALLEN , GREEN & W ILLIAM SON , LLP 

M onroe, Louisiana 
February 27, 2004 
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City of Tanulah 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

FEDERAL GRA NTOR/ 
PASS-THROUGH GRA NTOR/PROGRAM  NAM E 

CASH FEDERAL AW ARDS 
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Passed Through Office of the Govern or, Division of Administration 
Comm unity Developm ent Block Program - States Progr am 

Direct Progr ams: 
Section 8 Housin g Program 

CFDA Pass-Through 
Number Grantor No. 

14.228 107-900349 

14.177 LA242V0003 

United States Departm ent of Agriculture 
Passed through Rural Utilities Services - W ater and W aste Disposal 
Systems for Rural Communities 10.760 

United States Departm ent of Justice 

LLEBG-2002 

TOTAL FEDERA L AW ARD S 

43 

$ 485,864 

272,857 

402,233 

16.592 2002LBBX3408 29,676 



 

City of Tallulah 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

NOTE 1 - GENERAL The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal 
awards programs of the City of Tallulah. Th e City's reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the City's general-purpose financial 
statements. Federal awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards passed through other government 
agencies, are in cluded in the schedule. 

NOTE 2 - BASIS OF ACCOUNTING The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is prepared on the 
m odified accrual basis of accounting. 

-  RELATION A 
general-purpose financial statements as follows 

Capital Projects 
LCDBG 

Special Revenue 
Section 8 

Enterprise Fund 

W ater Fund 
General Fun d 

LLEBG-2002 
Total 

Federal awards revenues are reported in the City's 

$ 485,864 

272,857 

NOTE 4 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS Am ounts reported in the accomp anying schedule 
agr ee with the amounts reported in the related federal financial reports except for changes made to reflect amounts in 
accordance with accoun ting principles generally accepted in the United States of Am erica

. 

NOTE 5 - FEDERAL AW ARDS For those funds that have ma tching revenues and state funding
, federal expenditures were 

determ ined by deducting matchin g revenues from  total expenditures. In accordance with PIH98-14 "federal awards" do not 
include operating income from rents or investments (or other non-federal sources). Th e entire am oun t of operating subsidy 
received during th e fiscal year is considered to be "expended" during the fiscal year . 



 

City of Tallulah 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

PAR T I - Sum m ary of the Auditors' Results 

i. The type of an dit report issued was unqualified. 

ii. Th ere were four rep ortable conditions required to be disclosed by Government Auditing Standards
, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States of America. 

Th e reportable conditions were not considered to be material weaknesses 

iii. Th ere was three instances of noncompliance considered material
, as defm ed by th e Governm ent Auditing Standards, 

to th e financial statement. 

Audit of Federal Award 

iv. Th ere were no rep ortable conditions required to be disclosed by OM B Circular No. A -133 

v. The type of report the auditor issued on compliance for major programs was un qualified. 

vi. Th e audit disclosed no audi t Findings which the auditor is required to report under OM B Circular No
. A-133, Section 

.510(a). 

vii. The ma jor federal programs are: 

CFDA #14.228 
CFDA #10.760 

Community Development Block Gran t 
W ater an d W aste Disposal Systems for Rural Comm unities 

viii. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Typ e B progr ams as described in OM B Circular 

No. A-133, Section .520(b) was $300,000. 

ix. The auditee qualifies as a low-risk auditee under OM B Circular N o
. A-133, Section .530 



 

City of Tallulah 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

PART If- Findings related to the financial statem ents which are required to be reported in accordance with 
G overnm ent Auditing Standards generally accepted in the United States of Am erica: 

Reference # and title: 03-FI 

Entity-wide or nro~ram/denartm e This fin ding is specifc to payroll. 

Personnel files should contained som e form  of proof of existence such as I-9, copy of 
driver's license, social security or birth certificate 

Condition found: In examining twenty-five personn el files, tw enty were found to have no proof of existence of employee. 

Cause: The city was unaware of the need to maintain forms of identification in personn el files 

Effect: Th ere is no proof of existence maintain ed in personn el files 

Recommendations to prevent future occurrences: The City should have completed forms for proof of existence (I-9s) in 
personn el file for each employee. 

V 

or 

Th is finding is specific to payr oll. 

All payments to employees should be processed through the payr oll process 

Condition found: Recently th e Intern al Revenue Service began a payr oll audit of the City. One issue is wheth er paym ents 
to certain vendors should be considered independent contractors versus an emp loyee. 

Cause: It was more expedient to pay through accounts payable 

Effect: Potentially som e paym ents ma y should be treated as employees rath er th an independent contractors 

deffmed by IRS regulations regarding payroll are 
The City should review all vendor paym ents to ensure all individuals 

included in the payr oll process. 

Reference # and title: 03-F3 Travel E 

This finding is entity-wide 

Criteria or specific requirem ent: Travel expense should be 
are not paid on a per diem  basis, such as hotel expenses. 

documented by th e retention of actual receipts for expenses which 

Condition found: In testing ten travel expenditu res, none were found to have receipts for expenses oth er th an th e lin e items 
charge on th e month ly credit card statements. 



 

City of Tallulah 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

PART II- Findings related to the financial statem ents which are required to be reported in accordance with 
G overnm ent Auditing Standards generally accepted in the United States of Am erica: 

Cause: The City does not have an approved travel policy stating the procedure by which travel expense are to be paid 
or documentation needed or which sets the per diem rate of reimbursement. 

Effect: Th e agency does not retain complete receipts for travel expenses 

Recom m endations to prevent future occurrences: Th e City should formalize th eir practice into a travel policy
, which is 

adopted by th e council, stating th e procedures to be followed and docum entation required
. 

Reference # and title: 03-F4 Untim ely Cash Deposit 

Th is f'mding is entity-wide 

Criteria or specific requirement: Good cash management requires that cash receipts be deposited on a timely basis. AG&W  
considers deposits within three banking days as being timely. 

Condition found: In testing cash receipts, it was noted that six of twenty-five cash deposits for the General Fund an d seven 
of ten cash deposits for the Water/Sewer Funds were not deposited on a timely basis (within three business days). 

Cause: Th e City departed from previous procedures. 

Effect: Cash deposits were not made on a tim ely basis. 

basis (within three business days). 

Reference # and title: 03-F5 

Th e City should ensure that all cash receipts are dep osited on a timely 

F 

t: Article 7 

Th is finding is entity-wide 

Section 14 of the Louisian a Constitution prohibits donation of public funds. 

Condition found: In readin g the board minutes for August 8
, 2003, it was noted that the board approved giving $1,686 in 

public fun ds to a private organization. 

Cause: Th e board m embers voted unanim ously to give agency funds to a private organization
. 

Effect: Th e City is in violation of Article 7, Section which prohibits donation of public ftmds 

in th e future. 
Th e City should ensure that all Louisian a Revised Statues are followed 
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City of Tallulah 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

PART II- Findings related to the financial statem ents which are required to be reported in accordance with 
Governm ent Auditing Standards generally accepted in the United States of Am erica: 

Reference # and title: 03-F6 

Entity-wide or nropram /denartm e This fin ding is related to the entity as a whole 

The "Louisiana Local Government Act" requires budgets be am ended if expected actual 
revenues are five percent less than budgeted revenues or expected actual expenditures are 5%  greater th an budgeted 
expenditures. 

Condition found: Th e City's budgeted revenue exceeded that of actual revenue by seven percent in the general fund. 

Cause: The City did not make amendments as needed to the budget. 

Effect: Th e agency is in violation of Louisiana Revised Statue LSA-R.S. 39:1309-1310 

th e Local Governm ent Act. 
Th e City should ensure the budget is am ended in order to comply with 

Th is finding is entity-wide 

Original signed receipts should be required from  persons receiving m erchandise for credit 
card expenditures. The line item description that appears on the credit card statement is not a substitute for these original sign ed 
receipts. 

Condition found: In testing the vendor file for credit card purchases from the City's Sam's Club Direct charge card there were 
no actual sign ed receipts from persons receiving th e merchandise. 

Cause: The City's practice was that the receipts were not required to be submitted to the Clerk's office. Th e City 
heretofore, had considered th e line item  description on th e credit card statement as sufficient docum entation. 

Effect: Unable to assur e th at charges were COllect in am ount an d were received by person reflected on statement, 

Recommendation to prevent future occurrences: Th e City should require original sign ed receipts for charges to all credit 
cards. Th e City should review all charge card purchases for un approved purchases and/or personal purchases charged to the 
City. Th ese receipts should be retained with the paid credit card statements. Abuses of the City's charge cards should be dealt 
with in the appropriate manner. 



City of Tallulah 

O ther Inform ation 
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City of Tallulah 
Sum m ary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Reference # and title: 02-F1 Payroll Advance 

Condition found: An employee of the City was granted, in proper channels and procedure, a raise beginning in July 2002. 
However, on June 25, 2002, the emp loyee was given $1,200 in advance of the raise. This represents a loan  of funds from a 
political subdivision of the state, in violation of Article VII, Section 14 of the Louisiana Constitution. 

Recom m endation: Recommendation was made that the employee refund the unearn ed portion of the advance un mediately 
and that the City refrain from granting payroll advances in the future. 

Corrective action taken: City administrators fully understand the violation of this transaction with a City employee an d will 
never again handle an  emp loyee raise m this fashion. 

Condition found: The mayor was overpaid $4,243 in compensation. Th e overp ayment was the result of the mayor authorizing 
and receivin g paym ent for unused annual leave. According to Louisiana R. S. 33:404.1, "The board of alderm en shall by 
ordinance fix the comp ensation of the ma yor." Th is action is achieved through the annual budget ordinan ce an d subsequent 
budget amendm ents. By authorizing the additional comp ensation for unused ann ual leave, th e ma yor was in violation of the 
above referenced statute. Th e ma yor has agreed to reimburse the City for overpaid salary received. 

Reen mmendation: Recommendation was ma de that the City refrain from paying the ma yor comp ensation over an d above that 
auth orized by the board of alderm en. 

Th ere was a misunderstanding by the M ayor an d City Clerk on this issue. Since the City's personn el 
manual allowed for paym ent of unused vacation to an employee, th e M ayor was erroneously in cluded in th is "emp loyee" 

category when in fact he is an elected official. W e now understand that the Mayor as an elected official does not enjoy this 
emp loyee benefit. Th e ma yor reimbursed the City $4,243 on October 21, 2003. 

Condition found: A member of th e board of aldermen was paid a fee for cleaning the fair grounds. Th e alderm an represents 
that she was no more than a conduit for th e monies going to the people who actually did the work. However, in applying 
substance over form, she was the contractor and th e others who were paid for the work were subcontractors to her. 
Additionally, the City paid an  emp loyee $4,470 for contract work performed after work hours or on weekends. Both instances 
violate LSA-R.S. 42:1113 of th e Ethics Code, which states th at "No public servan t,..., shall bid on or enter into an y contract, 

subcontract, or other transaction that is under the supervision or jurisdiction of the agency of such public servant." 

Recom m endation: It was recommended th at the City refrain from  engagin g in transactions with  m embers of the board of 
aldermen, employees, or other public servants of the City. It was further recommended that the City refrain from the appearan ce 
of contracting with such persons by using them as conduits for payment to actual serv ice providers. 

: A council member was erroneously paid less than $200 to act as a "conduit" paym ent to an 
individual to clear trash from the Fair gr oun ds prior to a pubhc event. This was a very  unusual transaction at the tim e and was 
done for quick convenience without proper though t to all the ramifications involved. City administrators now understand the 
error and will not ma ke such a transaction with a council member or City employee in the future. 

Th e City emp loyee who was paid $4,470 for work perform ed after work hour s an d on weekends  was heavily involved in the 
City's mosquito abatement program and spent ma ny hours spraying an d spreading larvae killer comp ounds . Th is individual 
was authorized to perform these functions by the City Council more than ten years ago and has perform ed these duties ever 
since during mosquito breeding seasons. However, in the past, such amounts of pay have been included in hi s payroll check 
which was not the case during the past fiscal year. All such mosquito abatement program wages are included in the emp loyee's 
payroll records. 
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City of Tallulah 
Sum m ary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Condition found: The City's actual expenditures exceeded budgeted amounts by more than the 5% varian ce allowed by the 
Local Government Budget Act. Louisiana revised Statutes 39:1310-1311, provide that the budget shall be amended when 
"Total actual expenditures and other uses plus projected expenditures and other uses for the remainder of the year, within a 
fund, are exceedin g th e total budgeted expenditures and oth er uses by 5%  or m ore." W hile th e budget was am ended by th e 
board of alderm en, th e amendm ent failed to account for all of th e budget-to-actu al varian ces and, consequently, still had an  
excessive un favorable varian ce. 

Recom m endation: It was reconmaended that the chief executive and administrative officials take greater care in the 
preparation of am ended budgets to ensure that the 5% variance is not violated. 

u See current-year finding 03-F6. 

Condition found: In our test of expenditures we noted three instances of charges on the City's Sam's Club Direct charge card 
that appeared to be personal in nature. One for a DVD video, one for a photo album  an d an other for denim  shorts. This 
represents a violation of Article VII, Section 14 of the Louisian a Constitution as a donation of public fu nds. This is caused 
by a weakness in internal control whereby pur cha ses are made without prior approval, and credit card charges are not 
scrutinized closely to uncover personal purchases by employees. 

Recommendation: Th e City should review all charge card purchases for unapproved purchases an d/or personal purchases 
charged to the City. Abuses of the City's charge cards should be dealt with in the appropriate manner. 

Corrective action taken: These personal cha rges on the City's Sam's Club Direct charge accoun t were reimbursed shortly after 
the time of purcha se with the understanding that such acts were not to occur in the fu ture. See current-year fmding 03-F7. 

M aintain Prouer and 

Condition found: The City has not maintained an  adequate set of accounting records for its water system rehabilitation 
program. Th e Office of Management and Budget's Uniform Administrative Requirements For Grants and Cooperative 
Agreements to State and Local Governments (OMB Common Rule), Section 20, requires the ma intenance of accounting 
records. Th e Section requires that gr antee records  adequately identify the source an d application of fun ds. The records must 
contain information pertaining to gr an t awards an d authorizations, obligations, tmobligated balan ces, assets, liabilities, 
expenditures and income. M anagement was un able to provide documentation on gr ant am oun ts. Th e grant revenue was posted 
to bond proceeds rath er th an  a sep ar ate gr ant revenue account. 

Recommendation: The City's management should establish and ma intain adequate records that not only document the type, 
sour ce, and use of funds but also dem onstrate compliance with the terms an d conditions of gran t and loan agr eements. 

o For Phase I of the water rehabilitation program, the accounting of the project failed to designate 
separately federal loans  received versus federal gr ants. All revenues were classified as "Federal Loan s/Gran ts" with no 
distinction between the two categories. It was not known at the time that such a distinction should be ma de although to ha ve 
done so would seem to be a practical presentation. All federal revenues are classified as either loans or gr an ts. 



 

City of Talin lah 
Sum m ary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Condition found: Between July 1998 and March 2002, the City paid Mr. Curtis Brown $178,350 for various labor jobs 
including removal of trees and debris from  streets. The invoices accepted by the City from  M r. Brown  often contained vague 
specifications as to the date, location, or service provided. Invoices and supporting documentation for 20 payments totaling 
$15,650 were missing. In addition, the City failed to prepare and issue an Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Form 1099 to Mr. 
Brown for 1998 through 2000 and the Form 1099 issued to M r. Brown for 2001 was understated by $11,900. M r. Brown  stated 
th at he did not file a state or federal in com e tax return for any of th ese years. 

The City is no longer contracting with M r. Curtis Brown. 
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City of Tallulah 
Corrective Action Plan for Current-Year Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Condition: Personnel files should contained some form of proof of existence such as I-9, copy of driver's license, social 
security or birth certificate. 

In examining twenty-five personn el files, tw enty were found to have no proof of existence of employee 

The City will update personn el files to include documentation of proof of existence for current 
employees. In the future, th is in form ation will be required upon employm ent of an individual with th e City 

Person resnonsible for corrective action: 
Gerald Odom, City Clerk 
City of Tallulah 
204 North Cedar 
Tallulah, LA 71282 

Phone: (318) 574-0964 
Fax: (318) 574-2773 

V 

Condition: All individuals as defined by IRS laws and regulations should be included in the payroll process 

Recently the Internal Revenue Service began a payroll audit of the City. One issue is whether payments to certain vendors 
should be considered independent contractors versus an  employee. 

included in payr oll process 
The City will ensure all individuals def'med by IRS laws and regulations regarding payroll are 

Gerald Odom, City Clerk 
City of Tallulah 
204 North Cedar 
Tallulah, LA 71282 

Phone: (318) 574-0964 
Fax: (318) 574-2773 

Condition: Travel expense should be documented by the retention of actual receipts for expenses which are not paid on a per 
diem basis, such as hotel expenses. 

In testing ten travel expenditures, none were found to have receipts for expenses oth er th an th e lin e items charge on the monthly 
credit card statements. 

Corrective action planned: The City will adopt a travel policy to ensure consistency in the paym ent of travel expense and, 
when necessary, retain origin al receipts for reimbur sed expenses. 

Gerald Odom, City Clerk 
City of Tallulah 
204 North Cedar 
Tallulah, LA 71282 

Phone: (318) 574-0964 
Fax: (318) 574-2773 
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City of Tallulah 
Corrective Action Plan for Current-Year Findings and Questioned Costs 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Reference # and title: 03-F4 

Condition: Good cash management requires that cash receipts be deposited on a timely basis. AG&W  considers dep osits 
with in three banking days as being timely. 

In testing cash receipts, it was noted that six of twenty-five cash deposits for the General Fund and seven of ten cash dep osits 

for the W ater/Sewer Fun ds were not deposited on a timely basis (within three business days). 

tltree business days). 
The City will establish procedures to ensure that deposits are deposited on a timely basis (within 

Gerald Odom, City Clerk 
City of Tallulah 
204 North Cedar 
Tallulah, LA 71282 

Phone: (318) 574-0964 
Fax: (318) 574-2773 

Condition: Article 7, Section 14 of th e Louisiana Constitution prohibits donation of public lands 

The City wi ll take the necessary step s to ensur e that, in the future, there are no donations of 
public funds in order to be in compliance with  state law 

Gerald Odom, City Clerk 
City of Tallulah 
204 North Cedar 
Tallulah, LA 71282 

Phone: (318) 574-0964 
Fax: (318) 574-2773 

Condition: The "Louisiana Local Government Act" requires budgets be amended if expected actual revenues are five percent 
less th an budgeted revenues or expected  actual exp enditures are 5%  greater th an budgeted exp enditures. 

The City will periodically compare actual revenues and expenditures to those of budgeted 
revenues and expenditures. The City wi ll adopt amendments as necessary in order to be  in compliance with Budget Act. 

Gerald Odom , City Clerk 
City of Talluiah 
204 North Cedar 
Tallulah, LA 71282 

Phone: (318) 574-0964 
Fax: (318) 574-2773 



 

City of Tanulah 

Corrective Action Plan for Current-Year Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2003 

Condition: Original signed receipts should be required from persons receiving merchandise for credit card expenditures. The 
lin e item  description that appears on die credi t card statement is not a substitute for these origin al signed receipts. 

In testing th e vendor file for credit card purchases from th e City's Sam's Club Direct charge card th ere were no actu al signed 
receipts from  persons receiving the m erchandi se. 

Th e City will require signed receipts for all credit card purchases in the future. Also, the City 
will review all charges to credit cards to ensure th at all charges are proper in nature and am ount. 

n 

Gerald Odom, City Clerk 
City of Tallulah 
204 North Cedar 
Tallulah, LA 71282 

Phone: (318) 574-0964 
Fax: (318) 574-2773 
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In planning and perform ing our audit of the general-purpose finan cial statements of the City of Tallulah
, for th e year ended 

June 30, 2003, we considered the City's internal control to plan  our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our 
opinion on th e fmancial statements and not to provide assur ance on the internal control. 

However, during our audit, we noted certain matters involving intern al control and oth er operational ma tters th at is presented 
for your consideration. This letter does not affect our report dated February 27, 2004, on the financial statements of the City. 
W e will review th e status of th ese comments during our  next audit engagem ent. Our comm ents and recommendations, which 
has been discussed with appropriate m embers of managem ent, are in tended to improve internal control or result in other 
operating efficiencies. W e will be pleased to discuss these comments in further detail at your  convenience

, to perform  any 
additional stu dy of th ese m atters, or to assist you in implementing th e recomm endations. Our comments are summarized as 
follows: 

Comment: Th e City has funds invested in low interest yielding bank accounts, sometimes as low as 2/10 of one percent. 

Recommendation: Th e City should investigate other possible investments in which to place funds in which the rate of return 
on investm ent is greater than that now being received from bank accounts. 

earnings on investments 
The City will investigate areas in which to invest funds in order to increase the yield of interest 

Com m ent: The Louisian a State Code of Ethics states that the agency is not allowed to conduct business with related parties 

In testing vendor files, it was noted th at the agency paid th e broth er of an employee of the agency
. Th e amount of th e paym ent 

was $40. 

Recommendation: The City will refrain from engaging in transactions with related parties 

In the future, the City will not conduct business with family members 

AlSO Located in Jena and Shreveport, Louisiana 
Member: American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Society of Louisiana Certified Public Accountants and 

American Institute of Cerfifled Public Accoun tants Division for CPA Fimls 
Equal Opportunity Employer 
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Com m ent: A ll vendor paym ents should be made from  original invoice. 

In testing vendor files, it was found that three vendors were paid from faxed copies of invoices 

Recom m endation: The City should ensure that all disbursements ma de to vendors are from the original invoice. 

The City will ensure in th e future to require origin al invoice from vendors for paym ent. 

City of Tallulah vs M organ W atson 

Com m ent: In the fall of 2000, the City of Tallulah engaged M organ W atson and M el-Jordan-Lace, Inc. to perform the services 
which would result in a map of the boundaries of the City to be used for redistricting purposes. Th e City paid M organ W atson 
the sum of $60,000 for the services. In August, 2001, the City learned that Mr. Watson had sub-contracted the project out 
to M essinger and Associates, but did not pay the firm for their services. As a result, the City had to paid an additional $43,000 
to M essinger and Associates in  order to received the completed ma p. The City filed suit again st M organ  W atson an d M el- 
Jordan -Lace, Inc., on December 21,2001, requesting reimbursement of the $60,000. 

Recommendation: Th e City, in conjunction with the Madison Parish District Attorney, should aggressively pursue the lawsuit 
again st M organ  W atson to recover funds which the defendan t owes the City. 

The City will actively pur sue this lawsuit and strongly encourage the District Attorney's offi ce to 
assist th e City in its efforts to recover th e fun ds paid to defendant. 

Comment: In examining charges to the City's account with Doug's IGA (supermarket), it was noted that there were no receipts 
and that payments were being ma de from the statements for the period July 2002 through April 2003. In April 2003 the City 
Council expressed concern  regarding th e appropriateness of expenditures to Doug's IGA . Items examin ed from  M ay 2003 
thr ough February 2004 reflected that documentation for these payments were drama tically improved. There were signed cash 
register receipts and generally a pur chase order or requisition for each charge. Also, the monthly charges dr opped significantly 
after th e council's complaint and the implem entation of th e tougher docum entation requirem ent. 

As part of the investigation of this ma tter, three of the five council members were contacted and asked for any additional 
inpuffconcem  they may have regarding th is matter. 

Recommendation: Th e City should continue requiring receipts for all pur chases made from Doug's IGA 

Th e City will continue requiring receipts for all charges made to the account at Doug's IGA. 

03-M 6 Cell Phone Charges 

Com m ent: In exam ining th e charges incurred by th e City for cell phone usage by emp loyees, the charges were foun d to be 
excessive in amount. During one month, an emp loyee had 3,530 minutes used at a cost of $772.34. The City has since can celed 
th e serv ice with Nextel for the 15 cell phones which were in use. Cingular now provides the service for six cell phones used 
by the City. 

Recommendation: Th eCity shouldadoptapolicyregardingtheuseofcellphonesbyemployees. Th e policy should include 
a statement that if the cell phone usage is excessive, the employee will be required to reimburse the City. Th e City should then 
m onitor th e cell phone usage and be reim bursed for all charges th at are deemed to be imp roper in natur e. 
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Our audit procedures are designed primarily to enable us to form an opinion on the Financial statements and
, th erefore, may 

not reveal all weaknesses in policies and procedures th at may exist. 

/ 

ALLEN , GREEN & W ILLIAM SON . LLP 

M onroe, Louisiana 
February 27, 2004 
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